
London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

 

Children and Education 
Policy and Accountability 

Committee 
 

Agenda 
 

Monday 12 March 2018 
7.00 pm 

Courtyard Room - Hammersmith Town Hall 
 

MEMBERSHIP 
 

Administration Opposition 

Councillor Caroline Needham (Chair) 
Councillor Alan De'Ath 
Councillor Elaine Chumnery 
 

Councillor Caroline Ffiske (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Marcus Ginn 
 

Co-optees 

Eleanor Allen, London Diocesan Board for Schools 
Nandini Ganesh, Parentsactive Representative 
Nadia Taylor, Parent Governor Representative 
Vic Daniels, Parent Governor Representative 
Matt Jenkins, Teacher Representative 
 

 
 
 
CONTACT OFFICER: David Abbott 

Scrutiny Manager 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 Tel 020 8753 2063 
 E-mail: david.abbott@lbhf.gov.uk 
 
Members of the press and public are welcome to attend this meeting. This agenda is 
available at: www.lbhf.gov.uk/committees 
 
A loop system for hearing impairment is provided, along with disabled access to the 
building. 
 

Date Issued: 02 March 2018 
 

http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/committees


London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

Children and Education Policy and 
Accountability Committee 

Agenda 
 

12 March 2018 
 
 
Item  Pages 

1.   MINUTES  1 - 7 

 To approve the minutes of the previous meeting. 
 

 

2.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

 

3.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 More information on declarations of interest can be found on the next 
page. 
 

 

4.   SKILLS FOR YOUNG PEOPLE - YOUTH COUNCIL DISCUSSION   

 H&F’s Youth Council will lead a discussion on improving skills for young 
people in the borough. 
 

 

5.   TACKLING GANG AND KNIFE CRIME IN H&F  8 - 20 

 This report sets out the gang and knife crime profile of the borough for 
children and young people aged under 18. It also highlights H&F’s 
action plan in response to knife crime. 
 

 

6.   SCHOOL PERFORMANCE REPORT 2017  21 - 29 

 This report provides the outcomes of the Summer 2017 assessments 
and examinations in Hammersmith and Fulham’s primary and 
secondary schools, and the current position with regard to Ofsted school 
inspections. 
 

 

7.   DIRECTOR'S UPDATE REPORT 
This report provides a brief overview of recent developments in the 
Children’s Services department. 
 

30 - 36 

8.   CABINET MEMBER'S VERBAL UPDATE  
 

 

 
 



 
More information on declarations of interest 
 
If a Councillor has a disclosable pecuniary interest in a particular item, whether or not it is 
entered in the Authority’s register of interests, or any other significant interest which they 
consider should be declared in the public interest, they should declare the existence and, 
unless it is a sensitive interest as defined in the Member Code of Conduct, the nature of the 
interest at the commencement of the consideration of that item or as soon as it becomes 
apparent. 
 
At meetings where members of the public are allowed to be in attendance and speak, any 
Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary interest or other significant interest may also make 
representations, give evidence or answer questions about the matter.  The Councillor must 
then withdraw immediately from the meeting before the matter is discussed and any vote 
taken.  
 
Where Members of the public are not allowed to be in attendance and speak, then the 
Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary interest should withdraw from the meeting whilst the 
matter is under consideration. Councillors who have declared other significant interests 
should also withdraw from the meeting if they consider their continued participation in the 
matter would not be reasonable in the circumstances and may give rise to a perception of a 
conflict of interest. 
 
Councillors are not obliged to withdraw from the meeting where a dispensation to that effect 
has been obtained from the Audit, Pensions and Standards Committee.   
 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

 
London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

Children and Education Policy 
and Accountability Committee 

Minutes 
 

Monday 29 January 2018 
 

 

PRESENT 
 
Committee members: Councillors Caroline Needham (Chair), Alan De'Ath and 
Marcus Ginn 
 
Co-opted members: Eleanor Allen (London Diocesan Board for Schools), Nandini 
Ganesh (Parentsactive Representative), Vic Daniels (Parent Governor 
Representative) and Matt Jenkins (Teacher Representative) 
 
Other Councillors: Councillor Sue Macmillan (Cabinet Member for Children and 
Education) 
 
Officers: Steve Miley (Director for Children’s Services), Peter Smith (Head of Policy 
and Strategy), Kim Dero (Chief Executive), Alistair Ayers (Head of Emergency 
Services), Hitesh Jolapara (Strategic Finance Director), Dave McNamara (Director 
for Finance & Resources in Children’s Services), Helen Farrell (Assistant Director for 
Looked after Children and Care Leavers), Lauren Fernback (Head of the Virtual 
School), and Bev Sharpe (Director for Family Services) 
 
Guests: Elizabeth Stevenson (Headteacher of Lady Margaret School), Wayne 
Leeming (Headteacher of Melcombe Primary School), and Michelle Barrett 
(Headteacher of Vanessa Nursery) 
 
 
CHAIR’S ANNOUNCEMENT 
 
With great sadness, the Chair announced that Philippa O’Driscoll (Westminster 
Diocesan Education Service Representative) had passed away on Monday 15 
January. She had a genuine passion for education and took a leading role on her 
Governing Body on safeguarding, SEND, and looked after children. She leaves 
behind her a legacy of children in Fulham who had their lives enhanced by her 
efforts. Philippa was survived by Adrian, Laura and Stephen. The Committee 
observed a minute of silence in her memory. 
 

1. MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED 
The minutes of the meeting held on 13 November 2017 were agreed as an accurate 
record. 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 1



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies were received from Councillor Caroline Ffiske, Councillor Elaine 
Chumnery, and Nadia Taylor. 
 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

4. DIRECTOR'S UPDATE REPORT  
 
Steve Miley (Director for Children’s Services) presented the report that provided an 
overview of recent developments in Children’s Services. He highlighted the following: 

 The positive Ofsted inspections at Kenmont Primary School and Hurlingham 
Academy. 

 Work still to do on Education Health and Care Plan transfers to meet the 
deadline of 1 April 2018. 

 The investments Family Services had made in preventative work listed in 
section 4 of the report. 

 The work H&F had done to take care of a vulnerable unaccompanied asylum-
seeking child who had been stranded in Greece for over a year and qualified 
for sanctuary in the UK under the Dubs amendment. 

 
Nandini Ganesh asked when Ofsted would inspect the Council’s Special Educational 
Needs and Disability services under the new framework noted in the report. Steve 
Miley replied it could take place any time within the next four years. 
 

5. CABINET MEMBER'S VERBAL UPDATE  
 
Councillor Sue Macmillan gave an overview of her activities as Cabinet Member for 
Children and Education since the previous meeting – including visits to Fulham 
College Boys School and Phoenix High School.  
 
Councillor Macmillan then took a moment to tell the story of Steven Wiltshire, an 
architectural artist, who had attended Queensmill School from the age of five. As a 
young child, his only hobby was drawing – his first word was ‘paper’. The teachers at 
Queensmill helped to nurture his prodigious artistic talent and at the age of just 8 
years old, former Prime Minister Edward Heath commissioned him to draw Salisbury 
Cathedral. He went on to have a glittering career with exhibitions around the world 
and was honoured with an MBE in 2006, the same year he opened a permanent 
gallery in the Royal Opera Arcade, Pall Mall.  
 
In their 2014 manifesto, the Administration had promised strong links with parents’ 
groups – and at an early meeting with Parentsactive they made a powerful case for a 
centre for disabled children in the borough. With heartfelt thanks to Queens Manor 
Primary School, Parentsactive, and Dave McNamara (Director for Finance and 
Resources, Children’s Services) Councillor Macmillan announced the ‘Steven 
Wiltshire Centre’, a place for all disabled children and their families in the borough to 
enjoy for many years to come. 
 

Page 2



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

6. A DRAFT CONSULTATIVE REPORT ON H&F COUNCIL’S EMERGENCY 
RESPONSE TO MAJOR INCIDENTS IN JUNE AND SEPTEMBER 2017  
 
Peter Smith (Head of Policy and Strategy) introduced the draft report and noted that 
in 2017 there were two major incidents in and around Hammersmith & Fulham that 
required the authority to implement its emergency planning procedures – the fire at 
Grenfell Tower in June and an explosion on a tube train in Parsons Green in 
September. The report reviewed the Council’s response to those incidents at both 
strategic and operational levels and considered the views of local businesses and 
community organisations that participated in a ‘hackathon’ event convened by the 
Council to examine the views of partners. 
 
The report identified action taken to improve the Council’s readiness and response to 
major incidents and made recommendations for additional action for further 
improvements. The Committee was invited to discuss the report’s findings and 
consider the draft recommendations. 
 
Elizabeth Stevenson (Headteacher of Lady Margaret School), Wayne Leeming 
(Headteacher of Melcombe Primary School), and Michelle Barrett (Headteacher of 
Vanessa Nursery) attended to provide the schools’ perspective on the Parsons 
Green incident and wider emergency planning issues. 
 
Wayne Leeming said Headteachers wanted a central point of contact in case of an 
emergency to ensure they were getting the right messages quickly and efficiently. 
During the Parsons Green incident, a number of schools in the area didn’t know what 
was going on and were hearing conflicting stories from parents. Peter Smith noted 
that a recommendation in the report addressed that issue. Kim Dero (Chief 
Executive) added that the Council had also commissioned a separate piece of work 
on emergency planning – and that had stressed the importance of a single point of 
contact. A key lesson from the Grenfell Tower incident was that social media moves 
a lot faster than local authority communications. At the Hackathon, community 
organisations and residents said they wanted a faster way to keep in touch and to 
that end officers were exploring the use of WhatsApp groups etc. 
 
Michelle Barrett reiterated the need for clear communications with schools – noting 
that many parents would come to the school first for information about an incident. 
 
Elizabeth Stevenson made the following points: 

 It would be useful for school staff to have training on how to manage media 
messages. 

 The emergency plan should be flexible so it could adapt to changing 
situations. 

 Schools needed help in the aftermath of an emergency event. Students might 
need support for weeks after an incident takes place. 

 
Kim Dero agreed that support over the longer term was key. Resilience professionals 
spoke about the ripple effect – events can have long lasting impacts on people and 
we shouldn’t underestimate the effects it can have on the community. After Grenfell 
H&F established a team to reassure people in tower blocks in the borough that they 
were safe. 

Page 3



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

 
Alistair Ayers (Head of Emergency Services) agreed that any emergency plan 
needed to be flexible. H&F had an overarching generic plan with more specific 
event-specific plans beneath that. There were also London-wide plans that sat above 
those. Officers were refreshing the local plans with the community and planning 
exercises and training to support that. 
 
Councillor Alan De’Ath suggested holding regular drills between the Council and 
Headteachers to ensure the communications network was working correctly. Kim 
Dero agreed and felt this would build confidence. She said that a number of 
opportunities were being planned for spring and summer. 
 
Nandini Ganesh (Parentsactive representative) asked if there were specific plans in 
place to support SEND children and young people during emergency situations. 
 
Alistair Ayers said the Council would identify vulnerable people in an emergency. It 
had been recognised that H&F lacked information on vulnerable children during the 
Parsons Green incident but that was being resolved going forward. 
 
Matt Jenkins (teacher representative) said it was important that when children 
transferred schools, the correct information was shared. That should happen through 
SENCOs but it wasn’t consistent in all schools. Steve Miley said the process was 
there but perhaps there needed to be stronger recognition of its importance. He 
would ask officers to follow up on this with schools. 
 
The Chair said that children’s need for play was vitally important to their wellbeing 
and development and noted that the local Play Associations have people who can 
provide sessions at short notice who could be used for displaced families. The Chair 
also felt emergency response training should be a part of the induction for all 
councillors following the next election in May. 
 
The Chair noted that the schools close to Grenfell Tower were asked to close the 
day after the tragedy but they opened anyway because staff recognised the 
importance of stability in children’s lives. She asked officers to think about how to 
keep this continuity if there was an emergency in the borough. Michelle Barrett 
added that children should be housed as closely as possible so they can continue to 
attend their school. 
 
The Chair thanked the headteachers for their contributions. 
 
RESOLVED 
That the Committee discussed the findings and recommendations of the report and 
made suggestions (above) for the Council to consider in its response. 
 

7. CHILDREN'S SERVICES BUDGET PROPOSALS 2018-19  
 
Hitesh Jolapara (Strategic Finance Director) introduced the report that set out the 
budget proposals for the services covered by the Committee. He gave a presentation 
that showed the context of the scale of the challenge facing local government in 
recent years. H&F’s general government grant had reduced from £160m in 2010/11 

Page 4



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

to £90m by 2018/19. He noted that the 2018/19 budget assumed a continued freeze 
in council tax and no increase in fees and charges in Children’s Services, Adult 
Social Care, and Housing Services. 
 
Dave McNamara (Director for Finance & Resources in Children’s Services) then 
gave a presentation on the Children’s Services budget – noting the following: 

 Spending was moving towards prevention in the early years which was both 
better for families and saved money over time as fewer children entered care. 

 The service had successfully bid for growth funding of £1.8m to build a 
Disabled Children’s Resource Centre, improve SEN passenger transport, set 
up a new improved SEN service, and support Unaccompanied Asylum-
Seeking Children. 

 The key risk areas were around potential increases in entrants to care and 
high placement costs. 

 
Councillor Marcus Ginn asked how Section 106 funding was being used – and if it 
was being used for any ongoing revenue costs. Hitesh Jolapara noted that Section 
106 funding came with specific rules and regulations around how it could be used. 
The Council was using the flexible elements of funding to support the revenue 
budget. 
 
Councillor Marcus Ginn noted that the Moving On programme (H&F coming out of 
the tri-borough arrangements with Kensington and Westminster Councils) involved 
14 redundancies and asked if this reduction in staff was necessitated by the budget. 
Steve Miley clarified that there were now just 5 members of staff at risk of 
redundancy in Children’s Services and all were on the Council’s internal 
redeployment register. 
 
Councillor Ginn asked if the service was spending more money on early intervention 
work than last year. Steve Miley said that was the ambition but it was complicated by 
rapid changes in the residential care market – the costliest area for the service. It 
had become very difficult to source appropriate placements and unit costs have gone 
up significantly. In the last six months the service had created two bespoke children’s 
home for very challenging young people at a high cost to the Council, simply 
because there was no appropriate provision available. Councillor Sue Macmillan 
(Cabinet Member for Children and Education) added that this was one of the central 
reasons for creation of IFSS - an independent service that could work more closely 
with health services and bring in funding through grants and traded services. 
 
Nandini Ganesh (Parentsactive representative) asked what the high needs block 
(funding for SEND provision) position was. Dave McNamara explained that H&F 
received the lowest funding from the Government for the high needs block out of all 
London boroughs. Officers were in discussion with the Department for Education 
about this but were not expecting any more money coming in until the spending 
review next Autumn. 
 
Councillor Alan De’Ath said it was great to see the Council putting more money into 
SEND – particularly with the creation of the new Disabled Children’s Resource 
Centre. 
 

Page 5



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

Councillor De’Ath asked what the impact of the business rates review was. Hitesh 
Jolapara said the pilot modelling suggested no Council would be any worse off and 
H&F could get an increase in the range of £2.6m. Councillor De’Ath said he had 
concerns about increases in business rates – particularly the impact it would have on 
small businesses.  
 
RESOLVED 
That the Committee considered the budget proposals. 
 

8. LOOKED AFTER CHILDREN ANNUAL REPORT 2016-17  
 
Helen Farrell (Assistant Director for Looked after Children and Care Leavers) 
presented the report that highlighted the responsibilities the local authority had in 
relation to Looked After Children and Care Leavers, and how it discharged those 
responsibilities. She noted that outcomes over the past year had continued to be 
very positive. The children and young people showed real progress from when they 
came into care, including a 13 percent improvement in 5 A to Cs at GCSE level and 
an increase in Care Leavers attending universities. 
 
Lauren Fernback (Head of the Virtual School) noted that it had also been a good 
year for the virtual school - 93 percent of young people were either in education, 
employment, or training – with a rising number were attending university. 
 
The Chair asked about this year’s cohort and if officers expected these positive 
trends to continue. Lauren Fernback explained that this year’s cohort was very 
complex, with a number having significant special educational needs. In addition, 
there were a number of unaccompanied asylum-seeking children (UASC) and young 
people who hadn’t been in school very long. Despite those challenges, she expected 
the numbers going to university to increase as well as apprenticeships and other 
routes into work. Bev Sharpe (Director for Family Services) reiterated that the cohort 
coming in were incredibly complex and the placement choice was limited. The 
Council was using the LAC Assist team to stabilise them in placements but it was 
slow and labour-intensive work. 
 
Vic Daniels (school governor representative) asked what happened to the UASC 
cohort when they reached the aged of 18. Helen Farrell explained that they were the 
Council’s responsibility up to the age of 25 – beyond that it depended on the 
decisions of the Home Office but officers would support them through those 
processes. 
 
Vic Daniels asked how looked after children’s outcomes compared with other 
children and young people. Officers said there was a significant gap between looked 
after children and their peers but this reflected their life chances before they entered 
care. Councillor De’Ath suggested officers used the newer progress measures (like 
Progress 8) as it would make the impact of care clearer. Lauren Fernback said they 
would be doing this from next year onwards. 
 
RESOLVED 
That the Committee noted the report. 
 

Page 6



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

9. WORK PROGRAMME  
 
The work programme was noted. 
 

10. DATE OF NEXT MEETING  
 
The next meeting was scheduled for 12 March 2018. 
 

 
Meeting started: 7.00 pm 
Meeting ended: 9.00 pm 

 
 
Chair   

 
 
 
 
Contact officer David Abbott 

Scrutiny Manager 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 Tel 020 8753 2063 
 E-mail: david.abbott@lbhf.gov.uk 

 
 

Page 7



1 
 

 
 
 

 

BRIEFING ON  
Gang and Knife Crime in relation to children and young people aged under 18 

 

 
 
Introduction 
 
This report sets out the gang and knife crime profile for Hammersmith and Fulham (H&F) in relation to children and young people 
aged under 18.  Further it highlights the council and partners action plan in response to knife crime including preventative actions 
being undertaken. 

 
London context: 
 
In June 2017 the Mayor’s Office for Policing & Crime (MOPAC) launched The London Knife Crime Strategy.  
 
The strategy set out the Mayor’s ambitions to “redouble partnership efforts to divert young people at highest risk of offending and 
victimisation away from a life ruined by crime and onto a better path.”  

 
There has been a Met Wide average rise in knife crime of 25% 2016 – 2017.  
Met Wide the proportion of knife crime by threat to knife crime by use is 60% to 40% respectively.   
(taken from Pan London Knife Crime Problem 2017) 
 
Met Wide 19% of knife crime against under 25’s is gang related. (taken from Op Teal data set Feb 2018) 

P
age 8

A
genda Item

 5



2 
 

Local context/Overivew of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 
Knife Crime 
 
Since the summer of 2016, H&F has seen a gradual upward trend in incidents involving violence and weapons. Compared to 
neighbouring boroughs, however, H&F has low incidences of knife crime and knife-related injuries. The vast majority of these 
crimes are committed by young people either actively involved in, or on the periphery of gang/drug activity.  
 

 
 
 
H&F has experienced an increase in knife enabled crime against those aged 18 and under.  The knife crime report produced by 

Amber Burridge Principal Intelligence Analyst 06/04/2017 shows 14 victims of knife crime injury aged 18 and under (this covers a 

two-year period).  In 2017 there were 13 victims of knife crime injury. 

 

In H&F, the proportion of knife crime by threat to knife crime by use for those aged 18 and is 72% threat to 28% use.  (taken from 
Pan London Knife Crime Problem 2017). In H&F 76% (10/13) of crime by knife injury to 18 and under is gang related (2017). 

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

H&F Ealing RBKC WCC Brent Hounslow

Comparison across neighbouring boroughs 2016 Nov - 2017 Nov (Data 
from MOPAC)

Knife Crime Offs Knife Crime Injury Victims

P
age 9



3 
 

 

The tables below taken from the Youth offending team (YOT) database show during 2017, 22 young people received statuory and 

out of court disposals in relation to knife crime or offensive weapons.  The tables also show the age, gender and ethnicity of those 

young people.  This data tells us that H&F young people who carry a knife, are most likely to be black males aged 16.  The caveat, 

is these are young people who have been arrested and as Fig 4. demonstrates if you are aged 15-19 and are black you are more 

likely to be stopped and searched by police in H&F. 

 

 
 

Fig 1. 

 

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

15 17 12 13 14 15 16 17

Female Male

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
e
o
p
le

LBHF youth disposals for knife crime or 
offensive weapons during 2017, by age 

and gender

P
age 10



4 
 

 
 
Fig 2. 
 

White, 5, 23%

Mixed, 1, 4%

Black or Black 
British, 15, 68%

Other, 1, 5%

LBHF youth disposals for knife crime or 
offensive weapons during 2017, by ethnicity

P
age 11



5 
 

 
 
Fig 3. 

Youth 
Conditional 

Caution, 6, 27%

Referral Order, 
8, 37%

YRO, 6, 27%

YRO -
ISS, 

2, 9%

LBHF youth disposals for knife crime or 
offensive weapons during 2017, by disposal 

type

P
age 12



6 
 

1,567 

 
White 

1,642 

 
Black 

229 

 
Asian 

379 

 
Other 

 

 

174 

 
10 - 14 

1,074 

 
15 - 19 

788 

 
20 - 24 

532 

 
25 - 29 

344 

 
30 - 34 

 
35 - 39 40 - 44 45+ < 10 

 3,527 

 
Male 

290 

 
Female 

 
Fig 4. H&F Stop and Search figures from MPS dashboard Jan – Dec 2017 
 
 

298 

201 

406 

P
age 13



7 
 

Gang Profile 
 
The gang profile in H&F is distinct and defined to the northern area of the borough.  The pre-eminent gang is the ‘87’s / MDP’.  The 
gang is primarily located in the White City Estate / Shepherds Bush / Uxbridge Road areas.  It consists of predominantly black 
males aged between 15 and 25.  The older members (20-25) affiliate to ‘MDP’ and are primarily concerned with drug supply; they 
are not routinely involved in gang violence but they do have the capability and access to use firearms.  It is strongly believed by 
police that these members are now actively involved in county drug lines and will use younger persons for this enterprise. 
The younger cohort (15-19) of the gang identify by ‘87’ or ‘87 youngers’.  They are more likely to be involved in street dealing and 
more likely to be arrested by police for drug related offences because of this. 
 
The 87 / MDP gang has an entrenched rivalry with a Kensington and Chelsea based gang P Block / Ladbroke Grove Bloods / 1211.  
The rivalry is acted upon by the younger entities of each gang (87 and 87 youngers [FH]) and Ladbroke Grove Bloods and 1211 
[BS]).  This rivalry is postcode fuelled and not drug related.  It is takes the form of violence against the person, from minor assaults 
up to and including the use of knives and very occasionally firearms.  The rivalry is also played out on-line via ‘diss’ tracks and each 
gang has a primary producer and issuer of these tracks. 
 
In 2017, there were 10 incidents of knife enabled assault against gang members who were aged 18 or under compared to 4 
incidents where the victim was 19 or over.   
 
Actions to address gang and knife crime 
 

Targeting lawbreakers 
 

➢ Prepare 
 

➢ Prevent 
 

➢ Protect 
 

➢ Pursue 
 
 

Prepare 

• Consult with the community through the Independent Advisory Group, Safer 

Neighbourhood Board, Neighbourhood Watch, and Key Individual Networks 

• Seek political engagement & support through local Cllr’s & Members of 

Parliament 

• Encourage collaboration between schools, colleges, and Pupil Referral Units. 

For example, encouraging staggered finish times etc. 

• Be pro-active and not re-active when sharing information  

• Conduct proactive operations targeting firearms and/or gangs focusing on 

intelligence, prevention, and enforcement under Operation Trident 

H&F Police 

P
age 14



8 
 

• Support the Gang Enforcement, Assessment, and Review (GEAR) protocol in 

consultation with boroughs to reinforce the overall Met response to gang 

incidents under Operation Trident 

 
Prevent 

• Use of GPS tagging for Habitual Knife Carriers & Knife Enabled Crime 
offenders 

• Use of judicial restrictions; Criminal Behaviour Orders, Bail Conditions, 
Licenses, and injunctions for violent offenders  

• More focus on conflict resolution & mediation  

• Monitoring of social media 

• Work with Partners, groups, and communities to tackle gang criminality and 
prevent offending under Operation Trident 

 
Protect 

• Refresher training for officers around knife crime, Habitual Knife Carrier tactics 
and intelligence gathering 

• Engage local & national media on a strategic and operational level 

• Use stops & searches as an opportunity to intervene and refer those at 
potential risk  

• Change the mindset of young people towards carrying knives 

• Deploy to and support boroughs to tackle gang criminality, embedding 
“Ending Gang and Youth Violence” best practice in relation to gang 
suppression, under Operation Trident 

• Continue the Trident Partnership which seeks to safeguard, protect and divert 
vulnerable people via Schools Programmes, Conflict Resolution, London 
Gang Exit and Information Sharing to Tackle Violence (ISTV) initiative 

Pursue 

• Conduct regular checks on all Habitual Knife Carriers  

• Refresh intel activity & structure mapping to increase focus and monitor 
outcomes of all Knife Enabled Crime & Habitual Knife Carriers intelligence 

• Mapping of “localities of concern”, most vulnerable and repeat offenders and 
associations between self-identified groups 

• Investigating Gross Bodily Harm (excluding DV), knife injuries where the 
victim is under 25 or aggravated residential burglary, as part of Operation 
Trident 

P
age 15



9 
 

Stop and Search Monitoring 
Committee 
To provide local communities with 
a voice directly into H&F Police 
and to enable them to 
communicate their experiences of 
street encounters, especially 
around stop and search. 
 

Continue to act as a “critical friend” to the Police and challenge practice when 
appropriate, particularly around issues of disproportionality.  
 

H&F Police 
Stop and Search 
Monitoring Committee 

Operation Sceptre 
H&F continues to implement 
Operation Sceptre, which aims to 
target not only those who carry 
and use knives, but also who 
supply, access to, and importation 
of weapons.  Underage test 
purchase programmes of knives 
are carried out regularly with the 
Trading and Standards Team as 
part of Operation Sceptre.  From 
underage test purchases 
conducted this year, the team 
found they could buy knives in 11 
% of their attempted test purchase 
locations.  
 

Carry out bi-monthly operations with the Police (details below).  
 
 
 

H&F Police 

 Safer Schools Team 
H&F Police deliver awareness 
raising workshops on knife crime 
to youth organisations in the 
borough, including: youth clubs, 
church groups, secondary schools, 
and the Police Cadets. They work 
in partnership with agencies such 
as the David Taylor Trust and 
Youth Against Crime and use 
creative techniques such as 
bringing along surgeons and 
victims of knife crime to their 

Work in partnership with local organisations to deliver workshops to young people 
in schools and other settings.  

H&F Safer Schools 
Team  
PC Kevin Fagan  

P
age 16



10 
 

events, and showing educational 
videos produced by the young 
people at Cobbs Hall.  
 

Offering ways out of 
crime 
 

St Giles Trust 
St Giles Trust has been 
commissioned to deliver 
workshops to 1,500 individuals 
between 2015–2018 in the 
borough. The purpose of the 
programme is to engage very 
disadvantaged NEET young 
people and support them with 
moving into education, training and 
sustainable employment to help 
build positive futures.  

Deliver workshops to target number of individuals and secure funding for 
2018/2019.  

H&F Council  
St Giles Trust  

Keeping deadly 
weapons off our streets 
 

Trading Standards 
Tackling knife crime in the borough 
is a major priority for the Trading 
Standards team and regular 
operations are carried out 
throughout the year.  The team 
makes full use of other sanctions 
such as; verbal/written warnings; 
offering advice and support; and 
cautions or prosecutions.  
 

• Minimum of 30 visits to introduce/remind retailers about our knives and 

strong acid campaign 

• 30 visits to audit the procedures used at businesses that sell knives and 

provide relevant advice/guidance re: knife sales 

• Training offered to businesses focussing on avoiding underage sales 

(both when serving and when managing staff), the safe storage of knives 

and strong acids and on minimising confrontation 

• 100% follow up visits to businesses that sell knives to assess the impact 

of the training. 

• Wider contribution to MOPAC’s knife crime strategy where there is a 

Trading Standards role, via the Op. Sceptre steering group.  

H&F Council 
 
Trading Standards 
Valerie Simpson  

Knife Crime Test Purchases 
Trading Standards Officers and 
the Police visit retailers of knives 
and strong acids. 
The visits are planned to coincide 
with dates for the Police’s 
Operation Sceptre and include:  

• ‘Challenge 25’ test 
purchase visits 

• Participation in the Police’s Operation Sceptre – Bi-monthly operations 

with a minimum of 30 Challenge 25 visits (a target of 75-80% of known 

knife retailers) using someone just over the minimum age of 18, to see if 

they are challenged about their age, and 100% test purchases attempted 

at those premises that sell to the overage purchasers but without requiring 

proof of age. 

 

H&F Council  
 
Trading Standards – 
Valerie Simpson  
 
H&F Police Licensing 
Team 
 

P
age 17



11 
 

• an introduction to the 
knives and strong acid 
campaign 

• an audit of the 
businesses’ existing 
procedures. 

 

Knife Arch Operations & 
Weapons Sweeps 
H&F Neighbourhood Wardens and 
H&F Police carry out joint 
weapons sweeps of estates.  

Continue to work with the Police to carry out joint weapons sweeps of estates. H&F Police 
 
H&F NWS – Steve 
Gibbs 
 

Protecting and 
educating young 
people 
 

H&F Youth Council 
The Youth Council is an elected 
group of young people aged 13-
19, who live, work, study, or are 
looked after by the borough.  Its 
purpose is to give young people a 
voice that is listened to and involve 
them in decision-making. 
 

Consult with young people on tackling knife crime and how best young people can 
make themselves safer.  

H&F Youth Council 

Women and Girls Network  
The Women’s And Girls’ Network 
(WAGN) deliver advocacy and 
educational provision to teachers 
and youth service in the borough.  
Their services include: One to One 
Counselling, Therapeutic Group 
Work, A Dedicated Sexual 
Violence Helpline (London) and 
other activities around supporting 
victims of gendered violence.  
 

Educate schools on Violence Against Women and Girls (VAWG) and how to 
integrate support into different aspects of their provision.  
 
Continue to give young women a voice by providing them with safe spaces and 
consulting them on policies and key issues, such as knife crime.  

Women and Girls 
Network  

Safe Camp  
H&F Safe Camp is a sports camp 
for young people and children.  It 
is run by H&F Police, Access to 
Sport, Let Me Play and London 

Continue to deliver workshops during school holidays and work with partners to 
engage young people through sports and workshops.  

H&F Police 
 
Access to Sport 
 
Let Me Play 

P
age 18



12 
 

Sports Trust.  It aims to engage 
young people in a range of 
activities and sports. Workshops 
on the consequences of carrying 
knives are included in the program 
and are delivered by the Police.  
 

 
London Sports Trust 
 

Access to Sport  
Access to Sport has a great 
relationship with the local Pupil 
Referral Units and are currently 
engaging them in a “BMX Clever” 
programme, which is aimed at at-
risk young people. There has been 
particular success at the TLG 
Hammersmith, an independent 
school for children in educational 
crisis.  
 

Deliver the BMX Clever programme across youth organisations and schools in the 
borough.  

Access to Sport 

Primary Schools Knife Crime 
Awareness Workshops 
 

Sessions in all borough Primary Schools (years 5 & 6) on knife crime awareness.  
 

H&F Police  

Secondary Schools Knife Crime 
Awareness Workshops 
 

Sessions in all borough Secondary Schools (years 7, 8 & 9) on knife crime 
awareness.  
 

H&F Police 
Safer Schools Team 

EGVE Partnership 
The EGVE Strategy aims to 
reduce violence and knife crime – 
including improving the way 
national and local partners use 
tools and powers.  
 

EGVE Partnership Core Group will monitor the Knife Crime Action Plan and hold 
Leads to account. 

EGVE Partnership  

Standing with 
communities, 
neighbourhoods, and 
families against knife 
crime 

Weapons Awareness Group 
The Youth Offending Team and 
partners have delivered weapons 
awareness workshops to young 
people who have either specifically 
received an out of court disposal 

Continue to deliver weapons awareness workshops to vulnerable young people.   
 
 

Family Assist 
ASB Team  
YOT Police  
Street Doctors 

P
age 19



13 
 

or statutory court order for 
possession of a knife or for an 
offence involving a knife. The 
sessions focus on legislation, 
social perceptions, exploitation, 
and the impact on knife crime 
injuries.  
 

 
 
Report author – Alison Sabaroche, Service Manager H&F Youth Offending Team 

P
age 20



London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

CHILDREN AND EDUCATION POLICY AND 
ACCOUNTABILITY COMMITTEE 

 
12 March 2018 

 

 

SCHOOL PERFORMANCE REPORT 2017 
 

Report of the Director for Children’s Services – Steve Miley 
 

Open Report 
 

Classification: For information 
Key Decision: No 
 

Wards Affected: None 
 

Accountable Director: Steve Miley, Director for Children’s Services 
 

Report Author: 
Richard Stanley, Deputy Director of 
Education 
 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 02077 45644 
richard.stanley@lbhf.gov.uk 
 

 
 
1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This is the annual school performance report to inform Members of the 

Children and Education Policy and Accountability Committee of the outcomes 
of the Summer 2017 assessments and examinations in the London Borough 
of Hammersmith and Fulham primary and secondary schools, and the current 
position with regard to Ofsted school inspections. The report provides an 
overview of the outcomes and how they compare with the national picture; all 
data is also final. The priorities for school improvement in the London Borough 
of Hammersmith and Fulham that inform the work of officers in the tri-borough 
education service are also highlighted. The published results for individual 
primary and secondary schools will be made available to the Committee 
separately.  

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
2.1 That members of the Policy and Accountability Committee review and 

comment on the school performance details in the report and the school 
improvement priorities identified. 

 
2.2 That members make particular note of the main performance headlines: 

o In secondary schools, the percentage of students achieving all key 
indicators was above the national average, and Hammersmith and 

Page 21

Agenda Item 6

mailto:richard.stanley@lbhf.gov.uk


Fulham was ranked top in London for performance in the English 
Baccalaureate;  

o Overall performance at all Key Stages in schools in Hammersmith and 
Fulham continues to be well above national averages; 

o In primary schools, at Key Stage 1 and 2, the percentage of pupils 
reaching the expected standard in reading, writing and mathematics 
was above the national average in all three subjects; 

o The gap in outcomes for children in receipt of the pupil premium 
remained smaller than the national gap at Key Stage 2; 

o The proportion of schools judged to be good or outstanding has 
improved to 93% is and above the published national average.43% of 
school are judged to be outstanding compared to 21 % nationally. 

 
3. Primary School Outcomes  
 

Foundation Stage (reception) 
 
3.1 The percentage of the Reception cohort with a good level of development was 

74% in Hammersmith and Fulham in 2017, up from 71% in 2016, and 
compared with 71% nationally in 2017.  

 
Reforms to Primary Assessment 

 
3.2 In 2014, the primary curriculum was fundamentally reformed; expectations 

were raised, and the 2017 assessments were the second which assessed the 
new, more challenging, curriculum. Key Stage achievement is measured on 
performance categories for KS1 and KS2 teacher assessments (which allow 
analysis of those working at the expected standard, and those working at 
greater depth), and by scaled scores in KS2 tests (scores are standardised to 
a national average of 100, based on marks awarded). 

 
Key Stage 1 (end of year two – 7 year olds) 

 
3.2 The percentages of pupils working as expected at Key Stage 1 were higher in 

2017 than in 2016 in reading (79%, up from 78%), in writing (72%, up from 
70%) and in mathematics (79%, up from 77%). All were above national 
averages (76%, 68% and 75% respectively in 2017. 

 
3.3 The percentages of pupils working at greater depth at Key Stage 1 had 

declined in reading (27%, down from 32%), although writing remained at 
18%, and mathematics had declined from 26% to 23%. However, all were 
above national averages (25%, 16% and 21% respectively in 2017). 

  

Page 22



Key Stage 1 
Teacher assessments  

 

 LBHF NATIONAL 

 reading writing maths reading writing maths 

 

Working as 

expected 

2017 

 

79% 72% 79% 76% 68% 75% 

Working as 

expected 

2016 

78% 70% 77% 74% 65% 73% 

Working at 

greater depth 

2017 

27% 18% 23% 25% 16% 21% 

 

Working at 

greater depth 

2016  

 

32% 18% 26% 24% 13% 18% 

 

 
 
Key Stage 2 (end of primary school – 11 year olds) 

 
3.4 The percentage of pupils working as expected at Key Stage 2 had improved in 

reading, writing and mathematics overall (74% in 2017, up from 61% in 
2016) and was also above nationally (61%, up from 53%). The percentages 
had also improved in reading (82%, up from 74%), in writing (81%, up from 

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Reading Writing Maths Reading Writing Maths

P
u
p
il
s
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 a

s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 a

n
d
 a

b
o
v
e
 

Key Stage 1 - 2017 
Hammersmith and Fulham and the national average   

H&F 2016 H&F 2017 National 2017

  

Working as expected Working at greater depth 

Page 23



78%) and in mathematics (86%, up from 79%); all were also above national 
averages. 

 
3.5 The percentage of pupils working at greater depth at Key Stage 2 had also 

improved in reading, writing and mathematics overall (14% in 2017, up 
from 8% in 2016) and was also above nationally (9%, up from 5%). The 
percentages had also improved in reading (35%, up from 24%), in writing 
(22%, up from 18%) and in mathematics (35%, up from 19%); all were also 
above national averages. 

Key Stage 2 
Tests (reading and mathematics) and teacher assessments (writing) 

 

  LBHF  NATIONAL 

 reading writing maths RWM reading writing maths RWM 

 

Working as 

expected 

2017 

82% 81% 86% 74% 71% 76% 75% 61% 

Working as 

expected 

2016 

74% 78% 79% 61% 66% 74% 70% 53% 

Working at 

greater 

depth 2017 

 35% 22% 35% 14% 25% 18% 23% 9% 

Working at 

greater 

depth 2016 

24% 18% 19% 8% 19% 15% 17% 5% 

 
  

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Reading Writing Maths RWM Reading Writing Maths RWM

P
u
p
il
s
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 a

s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 a

n
d
 a

b
o
v
e
 

Key Stage 2 - 2017 
Hammersmith and Fulham and the national average   

H&F 2016 H&F 2017 National 2017

  

Working as expected Working at greater depth 

Page 24



4. Secondary School Outcomes  
 

GCSEs 
 
4.1 Further reforms were introduced this year to the GCSE grading system with 

grades 9-1 replacing A*-G for English and mathematics. Points 9-4 (4 and 
above) are deemed equivalent to A*-C (a ‘standard’ pass) but points 5-9 are a 
new measure termed a ‘strong’ pass by the DfE and have no historic 
equivalencies.  

 
4.2 The percentage achieving 9-4 (A*-C) in English and mathematics was 70%. 

It was also 70% in 2016, which was  well above the national average (59%). 
53% achieved 9-5 in English and mathematics, compared with 40% nationally.  

 
4.3 For the English Baccalaureate (a measure based on a combination of 

English, mathematics, science, a language and a humanities subject), 40% of 
students provisionally achieved this standard in 2017, compared with 41% in 
2016; this was also considerably above the national average (22%). 36% 
achieved a strong pass, compared with 20% nationally.  

 
4.4 The borough also performed well in terms of the deleted indicator, 5 GCSEs 

at Grades A*-C including English and mathematics, at 68%, up from 64% 
in 2016 (56% nationally).  

 
4.5 Attainment 8 (a score based on points for eight main subjects) is also 

provisionally above the national average (50.9, compared with 44.6) and 
Progress 8 (a score standardised to a national average of zero, based on the 
GCSE points that would be expected, given prior attainment at KS2) was 
0.17, which was considerably above nationally.  

 
4.6 In the DfE national release for GCSE results for 2017, the borough was 

ranked in the top quartile nationally for all key indicators, and top in London for 
the English Baccalaureate. 
 

GCSE Indicators 

 

 LBHF NATIONAL 

 2015 2016 2017 2015 2016 2017 

Grade C+ EM 64% 70% 70% 56% 59% 59% 

5+ A*-C with 

EM 
63% 64% 68% 54% 54% 56% 

EBacc 37% 41% 40% 23% 23% 22% 

 

Page 25



 
A Levels 

 
4.7 For A Levels, the percentage of papers awarded the highest grade (Grade A*) 

was 8% in 2017, which was the same as the 2017 national average (8%). 
Those achieving Grade A*-A was 27%, compared with 26% nationally.  
 

A Levels 

 
LBHF NATIONAL 

2017 2017 

A* 8% 8% 

A*-A 27% 26% 

A*-B 52% 53% 

A*-C 74% 77% 

A*-D 88% 92% 

A*-E 95% 98% 

 
5 PERFORMANCE OF PUPIL GROUPS 
 
5.1 In reviewing performance of schools in Hammersmith and Fulham an analysis 

is also made of the achievements of pupils in vulnerable groups. This includes 
those entitled to a free school meal (FSM), special educational needs (SEN) 
and those with English as an additional language (EAL). It also includes 
minority ethnic pupils, and those who are in the care of the local authority. 

 
5.2 In 2017 in primary schools the percentage of pupils entitled to a free meal 

(FSM, 22%) was considerably above the national average (14%) and pupils 
speaking English as an additional language (EAL, 50%) was over twice the 

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

C+ English and maths 5+ A*-C with E/M Ebacc

P
u
p
il
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 

fo
r 

k
e
y
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 

Key Stage 4 - 2017 
Hammersmith and Fulham and the national average   

H&F 2015 H&F 2016 H&F 2017 National

  

Page 26



national average of 21%. 75% of pupils were from an ethnic minority (BME, 
compared with 32% nationally), and 15% were SEN (compared to 13% 
nationally).  

 
5.3 In secondary schools the percentage of pupils entitled to a free meal (20%) 

was considerably more than the national average (13%), and pupils speaking 
English as an additional language (39%) was over twice the national average 
of 16%. 73% of pupils were from an ethnic minority (compared with 30% 
nationally), and 12% were SEN (the same as nationally). 

 

 
5.4 The differences (gaps) between key groups of pupils were smaller locally than 

nationally when deprivation (pupil premium, as measured by free school meal 
entitlement over six years and looked after status), is considered. 
Furthermore, EAL pupils performed above non-EAL pupils, an exceptional 
achievement when considering that approximately three-quarters of EAL 
speakers arrive in primary school with little or no fluency in English. 
Additionally, achievement was considerably above nationally individually for 
each group as shown below.  

 

 
 
5.5 Key Stage 4 the gap was also smaller than nationally for pupil premium, and 

as at Key Stage 2, achievement was higher than nationally for each group 
individually. 

 

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

FSM EAL MEP SEN FSM EAL MEP SEN

Pupils on roll in Hammersmith and Fulham schools 

Hammersmith and Fulham National

Primary Secondary 

Key Stage 2 - Percentage expected or 

above in reading, writing and 

mathematics

Pupil Premium
Non Pupil 

Premium
premium gap Special need No need

Special need 

gap
EAL non EAL EAL gap

Hammersmith and Fulham 2017 66% 81% -15% 30% 84% -54% 77% 71% 6%

National 2017 (provisional) 48% 68% -20% 19% 71% -52% 61% 62% -1%

Page 27



 
 
5.6 At both key stages, all main ethnic groups performed above, or broadly in line 

with, the national percentage for that group in terms of achieving as expected 
in reading, writing and mathematics (Key Stage 2) and Grades 9-5 in English 
and mathematics (Key Stage 4). 

 
6 LOOKED AFTER CHILDREN  
 
6.1 Key Stage 2:  There were 3 pupils in this cohort; one pupil (33%) achieved 

the expected standard in reading, writing and mathematics.  
 
6.2 Key Stage 4: There were 18 pupils in this cohort. Five pupils achieved 5 

GCSEs grades A*-C including English and mathematics (28%) and twelve 
achieved 5+ Grades A*-G (67%). Fifteen pupils (83%) achieved at least one 
graded result.   

 
6.3 The results for looked after children (LAC) need to be placed within the 

context of the high prevalence of SEN and complex learning needs and 
placement instability. Schools face significant and particular challenges in 
improving the attainment of LAC; however, the performance of LAC in 2017 
indicate that successful strategies can be put in place which improve 
outcomes.  Effective strategies include; close collaboration with the virtual 
school, consistent and robust identification of needs through effective 
Personal Education Plan, and targeted support using Pupil Premium funding. 

 
7 OFSTED INSPECTION OUTCOMES 
 
7.1 The percentage of schools in Hammersmith and Fulham which were rated 

outstanding or good by Ofsted inspectors in 2016/17 was 92%, with 43% 
outstanding. This was above the national average (89% and 21% 
respectively).  

 

2017 OFSTED 
Outcomes 

(All state schools) 

National 
(2016/17) 

Hammersmith and Fulham  
(2016/17) 

Outstanding/Good 89% 92%  

(55/60 schools) 

Outstanding 21% 43%  (26) 

Good 68% 48%  (29) 

Requiring 

Improvement  

 9%  5%   (3) 

Inadequate  2%  3%  (2) 

 
8 SCHOOL IMPROVEMENT PRIORITIES 
 

Key Stage 4 - 9-5 in English and 

mathematics
Pupil Premium

Non Pupil 

Premium
premium gap Special need No need

Special need 

gap
EAL non EAL EAL gap

Hammersmith and Fulham 2017 38% 64% -26% 16% 60% -44% 51% 54% -3%

National 2017 25% 50% -25% 13% 48% -35% 44% 43% 1%

Page 28



8.1 The School Standards Service in the Education Department leads on 
providing the council support for school improvement in Hammersmith and 
Fulham. In line with the local framework for school improvement this service 
allocates a lead adviser to each school to provide support and advice. The 
lead advisers undertake core visits to all state schools, both maintained 
schools and academies, and help with schools accessing the additional ‘buy 
back’ services that the Education Department offers. 

 
8.2 The School Standards Service is supporting the transition to the new 

Hammersmith School Support Services. The following service priorities have 
been identified for raising standards for this year: 

 To increase further the percentage of good/outstanding schools in the 
borough through appropriately targeted local authority interventions, and 
establishing effective improvement partnerships between schools; 

 To offer training and support for primary school leaders in assessment 
moderation and in the teaching and assessment of all the core subject 
areas in the new primary curriculum, especially reading comprehension; 

 To support early years practitioners with establishing effective assessment 
processes and with the sharing of best practice between settings through 
the early years best practice network; 

 To develop partnership arrangements with academies and the Regional 
Schools Commissioner that enables the service to challenge and support 
school performance in academies; 

 To support and advise secondary schools on their raising achievement 
plans, including the provision of a best practice workshop and the 
continuation of the education excellence grant (with each school being 
allocated £5K to support their plans in 2017-17); 

 To support access to and the delivery of quality independent advice and 
guidance on the range of local post 16 pathways available to young 
people, including apprenticeships, in order to continue to reduce NEET 
levels and further increase post 16 participation;  

 To continue the drive to improve outcomes for looked after children 
through supporting the work of the Virtual School; 

 To lead on sharing best practice between schools in the provision of 
effective education for SEN support children; 

 To establish robust plans for the financial sustainability of the additional 
discretionary ‘buy back’ traded services to schools;  

 To work with schools to strengthen school to school best practice networks 
and partnerships, and to make sure all schools can access learning from 
the best practice in high performing local schools and the offer from the 
teaching school alliances; 

 To continue to support schools with their teacher recruitment and retention 
strategies to make sure that they are able to recruit the best teachers and 
leaders for our schools. 

Page 29



London Borough of Hammersmith & 
Fulham 

 
CHILDREN AND EDUCATION 

POLICY & ACCOUNTABILITY COMMITTEE 
 

12 March 2018 
 

 

DIRECTOR’S UPDATE 
 

Report of the Director of Children’s Services – Steve Miley 
 

Open Report 
 

Classification: For Information  
Key Decision: No  
 

Wards Affected: None 
 

Accountable Director: Steve Miley, Director for Children’s Services 
 

Report Author: 
Steve Miley, Director for Children’s 
Services 
 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 0208 753 2300     
E-mail: Steve.Miley@lbhf.gov.uk 
 

 
 
1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1. This report provides a brief overview of recent developments of relevance to 

the Children’s Services department for members of the Policy and 
Accountability Committee to consider. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1. The Committee is asked to review and comment upon the contents of this 

report. 
 
3. SENIOR APPOINTMENTS 

 
3.1 Jan Parnell was appointed to the post of Assistant Director for Education in 

Hammersmith and Fulham in February.  Jan has a long history of work in 
Education in Hammersmith and Fulham both with the Council and in local 
schools.   

 
3.2 Tony Burton has been appointed to the Head of Finance for Children’s, 

Education and PSR Services in Hammersmith and Fulham. Tony moves over 
from the shared service finance team within Children’s Services   
 

Page 30

Agenda Item 7

mailto:Steve.Miley@lbhf.gov.uk


4. EDUCATION 
 

Hammersmith and Fulham’s Special Educational Needs and Disability 
Service (SEND) update  
 
Establishing the new SEND Service  

 
4.1  Over the past few months we have been busy with recruitment activity. 

Internal recruitment to key posts has been successful and the remaining 
vacant posts will be advertised externally. We are confident we will get the 
new teams up and running quickly, ready for the ‘go live’ date of 26 March 
2018. The SEND Implementation Group meets weekly to track progress. We 
are adopting a business as usual approach whilst we establish the new 
service.  
 

4.2 There is a plan in place to manage the office move to 145 King Street, 
Hammersmith where most of the frontline teams will be based. The Disabled 
Children’s Resource Centre will be used as a base for outreach teams and 
keyworkers. 
 
Education Health Care (EHC) Planning Team  
 

4.3 There is a large piece of work being undertaken in order to disaggregate the 
SEN cases (EHC plans) from the tri-borough to the sovereign borough. An 
Action Plan is in place and a Project Group meets weekly to carefully manage 
this process.  
 

4.4 The EHCP Team are also busy working to complete the transfer process of 
SEN Statements to EHC plans by the deadline date of 1 April 2018. This work 
has been supported by additional in-house capacity and outsourcing EHCP 
writing. Between October-December 2017, on average 75 draft reviews were 
completed per week across the boroughs, with 367 remaining for H &F. The 
team is confident this process will be completed by the deadline date however 
it does remain fluid as historical transfers are being identified.    
 

4.5 Good progress is being made on the completion of EHC plans within the 20 
week deadline. Between October-December 2017, 89% were completed 
which exceeds the stretch targets of 71-75%. Progress being made, is a result 
of new ways of working adopted within the team.   
 
Engagement and co-production  
 

4.6 We continue to work collaboratively with ‘Parentsactive’, the parent/carer 
forum. Parents and carers have been actively involved in helping us shape the 
new service.  
 

4.7 Senior leader attend the termly ‘Parentsactive’ Group and themed ‘you said 
we did’ focus groups provide valuable feedback from parents as to how we 
can improve services. There will be parent/carer representation on all 
workstreams that we set up to implement the SEND vision.   

Page 31



 
4.8 We recognise that we need to improve our engagement with young people 

and the recently appointed Local Offer Co-ordinator will lead on developing 
this area of work.  

 
Hammersmith & Fulham SEND Strategy  
 

4.9 Work is underway to develop our draft SEND and Inclusion Strategy. This will 
include establishing visioning workshops with parents, carers and partners to 
help us develop the strategy. We will consult on the draft strategy and a 
timeline will be produced.  
 
Preparing for Adulthood (PfA)  
 

4.10   The SEND Service includes a new Preparing for Adulthood Team (part of 
phase 1), which is aligned to the DC Team. The aim of the team is to provide 
a seamless service removing the ‘cliff edge’ often experienced by young 
people with SEND transferring between Adults and Children’s Services at 18. 
Key features of the team include, early transition planning from year 9, Adult 
Social Care and Children’s Social Care LD Transition workers working across 
both services, a better understanding by parents and carers of the PfA 
pathway and their expectations being more effectively managed. 
 

4.11 We have already started to work collaboratively with the ASC LD Transition 
Team to improve transition processes. The pathway will enable us to test out 
new ways of working prior to developing phase 2 of the PfA Team, to be 
implemented in September 2018. Senior leaders will be meeting to scope out 
the design of a new operating model (phase 2) and a PfA Project Board is 
being established to oversee the progress of this work. 
 
Disabled Children’s (DC) Resource Centre  
 

4.12 The DC Resource Centre will be named the Stephen Wiltshire Centre and is 
based at Queens Manor School. The building is on track on the keys will be 
handed over on 28 February 2018. The Centre will be open to families on 12 
March 2018 and this will be a ‘soft launch’ due to purdah restrictions. A bigger 
celebration event will be held in the summer.  
 

4.13 The DCRC will be a one stop shop for children, young people and their 
families with SEND. It will offer drop in advice and support, stay and play, 
short breaks activities and the integrated keyworkers will be also be based 
here. Multi- purpose use of the Centre will be encouraged and the Centre are 
already taking bookings and hosting events.  

  

Page 32



5.        FAMILY SERVICES  
 

Family Services - Practice Week  

Introduction 
 
5.1 Family Services complete practice week twice per year. Practice week 

provides an opportunity for Senior Managers to observe practice, meet 
children, young people, and parents and to audit cases. 
 

5.2 There is a dual function to practice week, the intention being to both quality 
assure Family services work and to influence frontline practice by facilitating 
reflection on case direction, work undertaken and case recording. Comments 
and feedback are provided to practitioners at the time in order to encourage 
learning.   
 

5.3 The most recent practice week took place between 22nd and 26th January. 
Reviewers included Heads of Service, Service Managers, Child Protection 
Advisors, and the Senior Management team. Three feedback meetings were 
held during the week at which time verbal feedback was obtained from the 
individual reviewers and themes were considered. 
 

5.4 The activity that took place resulted in 60 case audits completed with the 
practitioner, 10 observations of practice – such as child in need meetings, 
child protection home visits and child protection conferences. Parents and 
young people were contacted by telephone and asked to provide feedback 
from about the quality and impact of the service they had received. 

 
Headline feedback  
 

5.5 High quality relationships are developed between practitioners and families. 
Auditors were impressed with the clear sense of investment shown by 
practitioners. Practitioners spoke about families with real warmth and 
empathy. Auditors commented upon the strength of relationships built and the 
connections made. This included examples of creative direct work with 
children and young people.  
 

5.6 A number of cases were highlighted that demonstrated excellent practice. 
Examples in the Contact and Assessment service showed evidence of 
practitioners intervening with families to make a difference during the 
assessment process.  
 

5.7 Workers reported good support from their line managers and feel they receive 
good direction about how to work with families. Auditors commented upon the 
strength of management grip in a number of cases. However, the frequency 
and recording of supervision could be strengthened.  
 

5.8 Auditors felt that there were more opportunities to increase the use of Family 
Group Conferences to make a difference at critical moments.  
 

Page 33



5.9 It was highlighted that a proportion of the cases looked at had been known for 
a long time and that opportunities to make a difference could have been taken 
earlier.  In these cases, appropriate levels of intervention were now in place, 
but for these cases it is harder to make a difference.   
 

5.10 Chronologies were evident on most cases, however the quality of these as a 
working tool needed strengthening.  
 

5.11 There was also acknowledgement of the complexity of some of the cases held 
with particular mention of the Youth Offending Service and in the Disabled 
Children’s Team.  
 

5.12 Use of the Clinical Team was valued and beneficial in terms of quality of 
engagement and intervention. In two cases auditors recommended that use of 
a clinician should be considered, so important that all practitioners consider 
accessing Clinical input where appropriate.  
 

5.13 The quality of support provided by the Family Nurse Partnership- was 
recognised, but issues identified about managing risk and whether they 
escalate at the right time.  
 

5.14 Some gaps in identifying children as young carers. Training needs identified in 
working with victims of human trafficking. 

 
Follow-up action 

 
5.15 The full practice week report is in the process of being completed by the 

Manager for Quality Assurance and will be available in two weeks. The report 
will outline a number of recommendations for practice improvement and an 
action plan will be developed with Senior Managers.  
 

5.16 The report will be shared with staff at team and service meetings and the 
action plan will become the focus of practice improvement within Family 
Services over the next six months.    
 
Youth Offending service performance 

 
5.17 All 150+ youth offending teams in England, and Wales, are monitored by the 

Youth Justice Board against three key performance indicators.  These are: the 
reduction of first time entrants (FTE), the reduction of reoffending rates and a 
reduction in the use of Youth custody. 

 
5.18 Hammersmith and Fulham YOT has and continues to have high rates across 

all three of the above performance indicators. Due to this since November 
2015 until recently the service was considered a ‘priority YOT’.  This has 
meant additional oversight from the Youth Justice Board.  A considerable 
amount of work has gone into addressing YOT activity in all three areas and 
recent feedback from Liz Westlund Head of London and South East Business 
Area, Youth Justice Board for England and Wales is highlighted overleaf: 

 

Page 34



‘The committee are confident that the trajectory of improvement can be 
continued, and that you are aware of the challenges of your borough and able 
to take the appropriate actions locally’  

 
YOT performance as at Quarter 3 (September – December 2017) – against 
the 3 key performance indicators 

 
5.19 In LBHF the comparative rate of first time entrants (FTE's) per 100,000 

decreased by 11% for the latest annual period to June 2017, from 571 to 508. 
However this rate still remains above both the London and National averages. 
The actual number of FTE's reduced by 8 from 73 to 65. 

 
5.20 LBHF custodial sentencing occasions in the last twelve months decreased 

from 8 to 6. The annual rate per 1,000 of youth population dropped to 0.47, 
now just below the London average at 0.64 while the national rate was lower 
at 0.38. LBHF figures include a number of young people sentenced for very 
serious offences including supply of drugs, robbery and offences involving 
weapons. 

 
5.21 LBHF data shows the proportion of reoffenders decreasing by 5.1%, dropping 

from 54.1% to 49.0% for the last two measured cohorts. The rate is now just 
above the London average 47.8% but above the National average of 42.2%. 

 
6. COMMISSIONING 
 
 Family Support Service update  

 
6.1     The new Family Support Service will be established on 1st April 2018. 
 

Appointments 
 
6.2 Peter Watt has been appointed as the Managing Director of the FSS and will 

start his new role in March. Peter was formerly the National Services Director 
at the NSPCC.   

 
6.3 Wendy Dormer has been appointed to the role of Interim Operations Director 

for six months and started her role in January.  Wendy is on secondment from 
her position as Assistant Head Teacher at Melcombe Primary School. 

  
Single Assessment Framework 

 
6.4 Work is progressing on the move towards a single assessment framework 

within the FSS. The new approach is to remove the layers of bureaucracy 
families are often faced with on initial referral and a greater emphasis on 
building trust and understanding issues from a multi-agency perspective. All 
staff are undergoing training in assessment delivery and information sharing 
protocols. Staff will also have had Signs of Safety training and attended 
information sessions on systemic practice. Longer term planning will include 
the development of a Family Support Services ‘front door’.  

 

Page 35



 Co-location 
 
6.5 The service is working towards co-location of professionals. Children’s 

Centres are currently being developed as ‘stop and drop’ access for staff. In 
addition there will be more meetings with families in these settings.  

 
Findings from the Big Childcare Conversation – Consultation regarding 
childcare provision in Hammersmith and Fulham 

 
6.6 The main purpose of the Big Childcare Conversation was to help identify 

issues and gaps in childcare provision experienced by local families; as well 
as ensuring Hammersmith and Fulham work towards affordable and good 
quality childcare for residents.  

 
6.7  The survey was conducted in November 2017 and 315 households responded 

to the Local Authority’s consultation request to help shape childcare provision 
that fits their needs.  

 
6.8 Key findings 
 

 Households using day nursery and private nursery schools are paying 
between £200-300 pounds per week. 

 When asked what parents would like to change to meet their childcare need, 
the majority noted that additional breakfast clubs and after school clubs are 
required.   

 70% of the surveyed households are happy with the services provided by 
their chosen childcare provider, whereas, the remaining 30% stated they 
require more childcare support before 8am and after 6pm to meet their 
needs. 

 55% would like to use more formal childcare but the following reasons 
prevent them from doing so:  
o cost 
o lack of flexibility of childcare providers 
o extended pick up hours. 

 

 The majority of respondents get their childcare information from friends, 
family and their child’s school. 

 56% of surveyed households do not use the additional 15 hours free 
childcare for 3 and 4 year olds. The main reasons are because the child is 
too young or to old; or the parent didn’t know whether they were entitled to it. 
53% of all surveyed did not know whether were eligible. 

 The 2-year-old offer is used by only 7.3 % of parents who responded. 

 67% of respondents use Children’s Centres to support their child’s 
development and enhance their parenting skills. However, 33% of the 
respondents had never used a Children’s Centre; the main reason for this 
being that they were not aware of them. 

Page 36


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	5 Tackling Gang and Knife Crime in H&F
	6 School Performance Report 2017
	7 Director's Update Report

